




 

With the rates of rural housing in South Norfolk already consistently exceeding targets1, it is 
highly irregular to then perpetuate further rural allocations by way of a separate DPD which 
by definition cannot then be subject to full Sustainability Appraisal of growth options (through 
an Examination into the appropriateness of village clusters when weighed against other 
locational growth options which deliver whole local plan objectives)  
 
Given the above, it is our opinion that in order to move to a sound local planning framework 
for the Greater Norwich area, the preparation of the SNVCHP and GNLP should be combined 
from this point on, resulting in a joint Local Plan Examination capable of effective decision 
making. 
 
Sustainability Appraisal  
 
We consider that the preparation of a standalone Sustainability Appraisal (SA) for the SNVCHP 
in isolation of the GNLP raises a number of procedural concerns.   
 
As outlined above, allocations for new housing sites at Village Clusters within Broadland District 
have been included as part of the GNLP.  They have therefore been appropriately reviewed 
and assessed as part of the SA for the GNLP, taking into account overall plan sustainability 
objectives and assessment criteria.    
 
In contrast, the allocations for the SNVCHP are being assessed as part of an entirely separate 
SA process.  The SA Framework for the GNLP is substantially different to the SA Framework 
for the SNVCHP – the relevant extracts of both Scoping Reports are included at Enclosure 1a 
& 1b to this representation.  This leads to a fundamentally different assessment of the potential 
site allocations, and inevitably, leads to different outcomes.   
 
The preparation of a SA in isolation from the GNLP results in a scenario where the sustainability 
of the Development Plan has not been assessed as a whole but rather in parts against 
significantly different SA frameworks.  This is not a sound approach, and it is difficult to 
ascertain how an Inspector would be able to confirm the soundness of the decision making 
process and confirm the suitability of site allocations in respect of two separate sustainability 
assessments on this basis.  
 
Site assessment process 
 
The site assessment process for the GNLP was clear in that it chose not to assess certain site 
promotions and defer that to the SNVCHP site assessment process – best presented by the 
interactive map for the Regulation 18c consultation2.  We previously raised a concern with this 
approach at the time given the scale of some of the sites omitted.  These concerns remain.   
 
As an example, site GNLP2101 (promoted for a residential-led mixed use development at 
Spooner Row) included a site area of 77.26ha.  The site was not assessed as part of the GNLP 
but was deferred to be considered as part of the SNVCHP process.  However, the SNVCHP is 
clear that the main aim of the Plan is to allocate a series of smaller sites, typically within the 
range of 12 to 50 homes, across the 48 Village Clusters in South Norfolk.  Site GNLP2101 can 
accommodate far in excess of 50 homes and as such it is not clear why a site of such scale 
was deferred to be assessed as part of a process when it significantly exceeds the scale of 
sites considered suitable for allocation with the SNVCHP.   
 

 
1 Page 46 of the Interim SA of the Village Clusters document states that “Housing delivery in 
the South Norfolk Rural Area has been consistently strong over several years, averaging 222 
dwellings per annum (dpa) between 2011/12 and 2018/19 in relation to the JCS target of 132 
dpa”. 
2https://norfolkcc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=551020612db74e94a73c135935
a7114d  



This is an illustration of the ‘disconnect’ arising from the consideration of SNVCHP allocations 
in isolation from – and against differing sustainability priorities of – the GNLP.   

If planmaking within the Greater Norwich area is to be found sound through independent 
examination, then we suggest that the current tandem planmaking activity for the GNLP and 
the SNVCHP be brought together as soon as practicable, and in advance of an examination 
into the GNLP. 

oOo 

We would be happy to discuss any matters raised within this submission further with you. 
Please do not hesitate to contact me or my colleague Matthew Hewitt 
(MHewitt@DavidLock.com) if you require any further information. 

Yours faithfully, 

 

 

cc:   

  

Encl: 1(a) and 1(b) - Extracts, SA Scoping Reports 
























